
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, JULY 21, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The July 21, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order by 6 
Village President Dave Lienau at 6:06 P.M.   7 
 8 
Present:  President Lienau and Trustees Shane Solomon, Scott Baker, Kathy Enquist, and Nora 9 
Zacek.    10 
 11 
Excused:  John Clove and Pat Duffy 12 
 13 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, 14 
Marketing Director Jason Polecheck and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 15 
 16 
Others:  Rob Zoschke, Judith Stevenson, Denise Bhirdo. Sharon Doersching, Marge 17 
Grutzmacher, Ron Kane, and three other individuals.    18 
 19 
Approval of the Agenda and Minutes as published: 20 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the July 21, 2015 21 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 22 
– All ayes. 23 
  24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the June 16, 2015 25 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 26 
– All ayes. 27 
 28 
Comments and correspondence: 29 
Lienau noted that a thank you note which was received from Janal Suppanz for a memorial 30 
donation the Village made in memory of her mother was included in the meeting packets.  31 
 32 
Jackson indicated that a citizen recently informed him that Bluffside Drive was last re-paved in 33 
1961 and she would very much like to see repairs to that roadway addressed during the next 34 
budget cycle. 35 
 36 
Judith Stevenson indicated that she has given up on asking that the park closure hours be 37 
enforced. She is also concerned about a couple of safety issues. Now that the new beach is 38 
open and accessible there are power boats coming up onto the beach, which could be very 39 
dangerous. There are also large gaps on the “groin”, and she has observed young boys 40 
“disappear” in those gaps from time to time. The other day there were ten people swimming in 41 
that area, and she became very concerned when they went under the water and did not 42 
resurface for quite some time. She also has observed that a number of people had their dogs in 43 
the park. When she approached those individuals and informed them that dogs were not 44 
allowed, they stated, “Zeke told me it was o.k.”. 45 
 46 
Denise Bhirdo indicated that she was looking at the Village’s new website and could not get 47 
the Agendas and Minutes tab to work. She also believes that the wayfinding signage which is 48 
currently installed at the intersection of Country Walk Drive and STH 57 is blocking drivers’ 49 

2



Minutes for the July 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-2- 

views. 1 
  2 
Item No. 4.  Consider a motion to discuss and act on a recommendation of the Parks 3 
Committee (and the work of the Marketing Committee), and adopt an Operating Agreement 4 
between the Village and the SBAA: 5 
A draft of the Operating Agreement between the Village and the SBAA was included in the 6 
meeting packets and the Board members jointly reviewed that document.  7 
 8 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Zacek that the Operating Agreement between 9 
the Village and the SBAA is approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 
 11 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to discuss and act on a recommendation of the Parks 12 
Committee (and the work of the Marketing Committee), and adopt an Operating Agreement 13 
for alcohol sales at the “Midwest Sunsplash” Festival; and authorize the issuance of a Beer 14 
and Wine (Picnic License), to the SBAA for August 7 and 8, 2015: 15 
As part of the Village’s agreement with the promoters of “Midwest Sunsplash”, it is entitled to 16 
first right of refusal with respect to alcohol vendors at “Midwest Sunsplash”. After much 17 
discussion the Marketing Committee has recommended that the SBAA be the exclusive 18 
organization designated to sell alcohol at “Midwest Sunsplash”. The promoters support this 19 
decision. The Parks Committee and the Marketing Committee Chair are recommending that the 20 
agreement which was included in the meeting packets be approved. (The Marketing Committee 21 
Chair is making the recommendation that the agreement be approved because a quorum of that 22 
committee was not available to meet in a timely fashion.) 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board approves the 25 
Operating Agreement for alcohol sales at “Midwest Sunsplash” which was reviewed at this 26 
meeting, on the condition that exclusivity agreements through Village sponsorships are 27 
accommodated. Further, the SBAA’s annual picnic license application is approved, and all 28 
applicable fees are waived. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to discuss and confirm President Lienau’s recommendations 31 
for committee appointments: 32 
Lienau indicated that he didn’t wish to recommend any committee appointments at this time. 33 
 34 
Item No. 7. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 35 
Lienau gave the following oral report regarding Door County activities: 36 

 The new County Administrator will be coming on board on August 3, 2015. 37 

 Work has been progressing on the County’s Capital Improvement Program, and it will be 38 
addressed soon. 39 

 40 
Item No. 8. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 41 
monthly bills: 42 
Payment Approval Reports for the period June 17, 2015 through July 21, 2015 were included in 43 
the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents.  44 
 45 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the monthly bills depicted on the 46 
reports which were included in the meeting packets totaling $666,228.88 are all approved. 47 
Motion carried – All ayes. 48 
 49 

3



Minutes for the July 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-3- 

Item No. 9. Report by the Village Administrator on Village activities and projects: 1 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 2 
 3 

 Work on the Bay Shore Drive Line Burial Project is substantially completed. All the bills 4 
have not been received yet, but he believes final project costs will be approximately 5 
$1.1 million. 6 

 Work is progressing on the Sledding Hill. The employees from Hockers Excavating plan 7 
to finish the hill as soon as the work on the beach has been completed, and at that time a 8 
number of safety concerns will be addressed.  9 

 The anticipated substantial completion date for the Beach Project is August 6, 2015. 10 
Conduit is being installed along the entire length of the reclaimed paver sidewalk. 11 

 “Midwest Sunsplash” is scheduled for August 7 and 8, 2015.  12 

  Construction is underway on Niagra Ridge, the development being constructed on the 13 
Old Ballfield Property. 14 

  Keith Garot has not met the deadlines agreed to in the Development Agreement for 15 
Stony Ridge. He sent Mr. Garot an e-mail regarding this issue on July 14, 2015, but he 16 
has not received a response to that e-mail yet. 17 

  The search will continue for a Finance Director. New “Help Wanted” ads will be placed 18 
around the end of July. 19 

  One of the Parks Department employees was injured on the job and had to have back 20 
surgery. He is still off of work at this time. 21 

  Joe Baldarotta will be returning as the Ice Rink Manager. 22 

  Several issues associated with the Harbor View development, which will be constructed 23 
on the Old School Property, have been referred to the Plan Commission. 24 

  He is happy to report that sales have increased substantially at the Marina. The “Marina 25 
Guest Events” have been a huge success.  26 

  Movies In the Park are being conducted on a regular basis. The movie project is still a 27 
“work in progress” and statistics are being kept regarding attendance.  28 

  A Village newsletter will again be mailed out on a regular basis. Jackson distributed a 29 
draft of that document, and the Board members jointly reviewed it. A few revisions were 30 
recommended and Jackson took note of all of them. 31 

  A draft of a community input survey was included in the meeting packets. If any of the 32 
Board members would like to recommend revisions they should contact Jackson ASAP. 33 

 34 
Item No. 10. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 35 
committee, official or employee: 36 

    It was the consensus that the following issues shall be referred to the Parks Committee: 37 
A. The safety issues associated with power boats being driven onto the new beach; 38 
B. Enforcement of park closure hours; 39 
C. The safety issues associated with people swimming into the gaps on the “groin”; 40 
D. Enforcement of the “No Dogs Allowed In The Park” regulations; and, 41 
E. The line of sight issues associated with the wayfinding signage which has been 42 

placed at the intersection of Country Walk Drive and STH 57. 43 
 44 

   The web site functionality issues which were mentioned by Denise Bhirdo will also be 45 
investigated by Jackson and Suppanz. 46 

 47 
 48 

4



Minutes for the July 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-4- 

Committee Reports: 1 
(1) Administrative Committee: 2 
          The Administrative Committee has not met recently. 3 

 4 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee: 5 
           The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently. 6 

There has been very low attendance at the public informational meetings, and, therefore, 7 
the next D.O.T. informational meeting will not be conducted until 9:00 A.M. on 8 
September 1, 2015. 9 

 10 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee: 11 
           The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. 12 
    13 
(4)  Door County Coastal Byways Commission: 14 
 The Coastal Byways Commission met on Thursday, July 16, 2015, but those minutes have 15 

not been completed yet. Once the work is completed on the Bay Shore Drive 16 
Reconstruction Project the Village’s Coastal Byways Kiosk will be placed in its permanent 17 
location.  18 

 19 
(5)  DCEDC: 20 

 The DCEDC met on July 13, 2015 and two ex-officio members were appointed – the new 21 
County Administrator and Josh VanLieshout, the new Administrator for the City of 22 
Sturgeon Bay. 23 

 24 
(6)  Economic Development Committee: 25 
 The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. 26 
 27 
(7)  Finance Committee: 28 

 The Finance Committee will be meeting tomorrow. 29 
 30 
(8)  Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 31 
 The Fire Board has not met recently. 32 
  33 
 The Fire District Exploratory Committee also has not met recently. 34 
 35 
(9)  Historical Society: 36 
 The Historical Society Board of Directors continues to meet on a regular basis and things 37 

are in “full swing” out at the Corner of the Past.  38 
 39 
(10)  Library Commission: 40 

No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Library 41 
Commission met this morning. The Marina Fest Booksale will be conducted in the Village 42 
Hall this year.  43 

 44 
(11)  Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 45 

Since Clove, who is the Chair of the Marina Committee was not present no report was 46 
given regarding the Marina operations. 47 
 48 
Work is ongoing on planning for Marina Fest and things are going well. A Lumberjack 49 
Show will be conducted on the Sunday of Labor Day, so Marina Fest will now be a two 50 

5



Minutes for the July 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-5- 

day event.    1 
 2 

(12)  Marketing Committee: 3 
The Marketing Committee has not met recently. A meeting was scheduled for this 4 
afternoon but was not conducted due to lack of a quorum.  5 
 6 

(13)  Parks: 7 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The 8 

recycled pavers should be placed around the new beach soon. 9 
 10 
(14)  Personnel Committee: 11 
 The Personnel Committee has not met recently. 12 
 13 
(15)  Plan Commission: 14 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. On July 28, 15 

2015 a public hearing will be conducted regarding a Zoning Code text amendment 16 
which will allow quarries as a conditional use in the B-1 District. 17 

 18 
(16)  SBAA: 19 
 There wasn’t a quorum present for the last meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors so a 20 

brief Board meeting was conducted this evening. At that meeting discussion took place 21 
regarding some logistical issues associated with “Midwest Sunsplash”. 22 

 23 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the quarterly support for the SBAA 24 
shall be released ASAP. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
    26 
(17)  Teen Center: 27 
 The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 28 
 29 
(18)  Tourism Zone Commission: 30 
  No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The 31 

Commission met this morning and at that meeting discussion took place regarding 32 
installation of bicycle repair stations throughout the County. 33 

 34 
(19)  Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees: 35 

The July 7, 2015 meeting of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Utility Committee was not 36 
conducted due to lack of a quorum. 37 
 38 
The Water, Sewer Collection, and Storm Sewer Committee did meet, but those minutes 39 
have not been completed yet.  40 

 41 
(20)  Administration/Compensation Oversight: 42 
 The Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee has not met recently. 43 
 44 
(21)  Waterfront Oversight 45 
 The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 46 
 47 
At 7:02 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 7:10 P.M. 48 
 49 
 50 

6



Minutes for the July 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Board\2015\2015_07\word files\072115 Village Board Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 03/04/2015; Last Printed: 8/12/2015 1:34 PM 

-6- 

Item No. 1. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 1 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 2 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 3 
reasons require a closed session, and §19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel, who either 4 
orally or in writing will advise the governmental body on a strategy to be adopted with 5 
respect to current or likely litigation: 6 
At 7:11 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon to convene into closed 7 
session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public 8 
properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public business, 9 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and §19.85(1)(g) to 10 
confer with legal counsel, who either orally or in writing will advise the governmental body on a 11 
strategy to be adopted with respect to current or likely litigation. A roll call vote was taken on 12 
the motion and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 13 
 14 
 Baker – Aye;  Enquist – Aye;    Lienau – Aye;      Solomon – Aye;         15 
      Zacek – Aye. 16 
 17 
Motion carried. 18 
 19 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 20 
At 7:45 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker to reconvene into open 21 
session. 22 
 23 
Another roll call vote was taken and the Board members again voted in the following fashion: 24 
 25 
 Baker – Aye;  Enquist – Aye;   Lienau – Aye;     Solomon – Aye;  26 
      Zacek – Aye. 27 
 28 
Motion carried. 29 
 30 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 31 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that the Village shall issue a tax refund of 32 
$15,250 to West Capital based on the agreed 2009 value of the waterfront parcel referred to in 33 
Door County Circuit Court Case No. 10-CV-353 of $3,100,000. Motion carried – All ayes.  34 
 35 
Adjournment: 36 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Enquist to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 37 
Trustees at 7:55 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 38 
 39 
Respectfully submitted,  40 

 41 
Janal Suppanz, 42 
Assistant Administrator 43 

7



8



9



10



11



12



 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

 

#2 REVISION 
STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 

FOR A STATE- LET HIGHWAY 
PROJECT 

 
This agreement supersedes the 

agreement signed by the Municipality on 
August 4, 2008 and Revision #1 signed by 

the Municipality on January 12, 2015. 
 

Revised Date: July 30, 2015 

Date: June 27, 2008  

I.D.: 4610-06-00 / 71 

Road Name: STH 42  

Limits: STH 42, Village of Sister Bay 

            Country Walk Drive – Scandia Road 

County: Door 

Roadway Length: 0.77 

 
 

The signatory Village of Sister Bay, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized 
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the 
State, to initiate and effect the highway or street improvement hereinafter described. 

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 86.25(1), (2), 
and (3) of the Statutes. 

 
 

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY: 

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request:  The existing asphaltic pavement will reach its service 
life by 2012.  The Village has conducted a comprehensive utility capital improvement analysis indicating that new 
sanitary, water and storm systems should be located under STH 42.  A section of storm sewer has failed resulting 
in the Village replacing a portion of it.  From STH 57 to the west no storm sewer exists and a paved ditch handles 
storm flow.  No sidewalk exists from STH 57 to Country Walk Lane where a multi-use path is available. 

Proposed Improvement - Nature of work:  This project will be a full reconstruction of the existing roadway 
within the project limits.  Improvements include new storm sewer, base aggregate, concrete pavement, curb and 
gutter, sidewalks, and lighting.  The urban section will be extended from STH 57 to Country Walk Drive.  The 
slope of the roadway between STH 57 and Gateway Drive will be lowered through rock blasting.  STH 57 will be 
reconstructed from STH 42 to Canterbury Lane and Gateway Drive will be reconstructed between STH 42 and 
STH 57, both roadways with asphalt pavement.  This project will include minor sanitary sewer and watermain 
relocations; however most of this work will be completed by the village under a separate project prior to this 
project.  The village is also entering into separate agreements with private utility companies to relocate facilities 
underground.   

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project 
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality: The village will complete most 
sanitary sewer and watermain construction prior to this project.  Sanitary sewer and watermain items not completed 
by the village prior to construction will be done as part of this project.  This project will also complete a pipe lining 
for a private storm system from Casperson Pond.  The village is also working independently with private utility 
companies on the burial of overhead utilities prior to the start of this project. 

 
 
 

13



 

Page 2 of 9 
 

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF COSTS
Total Federal/State Municipal 

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

Preliminary Engineering:
Plan Development 300,000$          300,000$          100% -$                  

Real Estate Acquisition:
Acquisition 1,100,000$       1,100,000$       100% -$                  0%
Compensable Utilities 2,510$              2,510$              100% -$                  0%

Construction: Participating
Roadway (Cat. 0010) 5,245,712$       -$                  -$                  0%
New Lighting (Cat. 0030) 211,629$          
     Priority 1 - CSS 33,536$            Capped -$                  0%
     Priority 2 - Regular 178,093$          Capped -$                  0%
     Priority 3 - Local Funds -$                  0% Unlimited 100%
Colored and Stamped Concrete 
(Cat. 0040) 56,464$            56,464$            Capped Unlimited 100%

Construction: Non-Participating
Village of Sister Bay (Cat. 0020) 286,615$          168,468$          Capped 118,147$          100%

Total Cost Distribution 7,202,928$       1,839,071$       118,147$          Note 1.

Note 1:  Several Municipal cost share items have been included in the federal/state fund 
columns due to credits owed to the Municipality.  These are outlined in "Section 9. Basis for 
local participation".

 
 

This request is subject to the terms and conditions that follow (pages 3 – 9) and is made by the undersigned 
under proper authority to make such request for the designated Municipality and upon signature by the State and 
delivery to the Municipality shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State. No term or 
provision of neither the State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or 
terminated orally but only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal 
Agreement.  
 
Signed for and in behalf of the Village of Sister Bay  (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name                                                           Title                                                                     Date 
 
Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name         Title        Date                                    
 
 
  

14



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. The initiation and accomplishment of the improvement will be subject to the applicable Federal and State 
regulations. 

2. The Municipality shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement that 
exceed Federal/State financing commitments or are ineligible for Federal/State financing. Local participation 
shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary of Costs table, which shows Municipal 
funding participation. In order to guarantee the Municipality’s foregoing agreements to pay the State, the 
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set 
off and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from any moneys otherwise 
due and payable by the State to the Municipality. 

3. Funding of each project Phase is subject to inclusion in an approved program and per the State’s Facility 
Development Manual (FDM) standards.  Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing will be limited 
to participation in the costs of the following items as specified in the Summary of Costs: 

(a)  Design engineering and state review services. 

(b)  Real Estate necessitated for the improvement. 

(c)  Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project. 

(d)  The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and bridge costs to State standards, excluding the cost of 
parking areas. 

(e)  Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water 
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer 
manhole covers and inlet grates as needed. 

(f)  Construction engineering incidental to inspection and supervision of actual construction work, except for 
inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main. 

(g)  Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, including detour 
routes. 

(h)  Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the 
time of construction.  Sidewalk is considered to be new if it’s constructed in a location where it has not 
existed before.  

(i)  Replacement of existing driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project. 

(j)  New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard State street lighting and 
traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement of existing components. 

4.  Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Municipality or other utility or 
Facility Owner includes the following items: 

(a)  New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone, 
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities. 

(b)  New installation or alteration of signs not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic. 

(c)  Roadway and bridge width in excess of standards. 

(d)  Construction inspection, staking, and material testing and acceptance for construction of sanitary 
sewer and water main. 

(e)  Parking lane costs. 

15



 

Page 4 of 9 
 

(f)  Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered for city utility construction. All 
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations.  

5.  As the work progresses, the Municipality will be billed for work completed which is not chargeable to 
federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division of 
costs. 

6.  If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State 
in behalf of the project. 

7.  The work will be administered by the State and may include items not eligible for federal/state participation. 

8.  The Municipality shall at its own cost and expense: 

(a)  Maintain all items outside the travel lane along the project, to include but not limited to parking lanes, curb 
and gutter, drainage facilities, sidewalks, multi-use paths, retaining walls, pedestrian refuge islands, fences, 
landscaping features and amenities funded by Community Sensitive Solutions (CSS). This agreement does 
not remove the current municipal maintenance responsibility. 

(b)  Maintain and accept responsibility for the energy, operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of the 
lighting system. 

(c)  Prohibit angle parking. 

(d)  Regulate parking along the highway.  The Municipality will file a parking declaration with the State. 

(e)  Regulate and prohibit, by ordinance, parking at all times on STH 42 between Country Walk Drive and 
STH 57. 

(f)  Use the WisDOT Utility Accommodation Policy unless the Municipality adopts a policy which has 
equal or more restrictive controls. 

(g)  Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water main work.  The 
Municipality assumes full responsibility for the design, installation, inspection, testing, and 
operation of the sanitary sewer and water system.  This relieves the State and all of its employees 
from the liability for all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary sewer and water system 
construction. The State will provide inspection for the trenching and backfill operations related to these 
system installations.  The Municipality will be responsible for all layout, staking, system testing, and 
other oversight of the specific sanitary sewer and water system construction.  The Municipality shall 
coordinate with the State and provide necessary documentation for the project records. 

(h)  Maintain all Community Sensitive Solutions and/or enhancement funded items. 

(i)  Coordinate with the State on changes to highway access within the project limits. 

(j)  In cooperation with the State, assist with public relations for the project and announcements to the 
press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the community of 
the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements for handling traffic within and around 
the project.  

(k)  Maintain signs and pavement markings not necessary for the safe and efficient movement of traffic (no 
parking signs, crosswalk pavement markings not at signalized intersections, etc).  

  

16



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

9.  Basis for local participation:  
 
The below items are those that were previously estimated based on unit price historical data and are 
being updated based on actual unit costs as bid by the successful bidder.    

 Parking Lane Costs 
In accordance with WisDOT’s Program Management Manual, Chapter 03-25-05, the cost of 
reconstructing parking lanes is 100% local responsibility.  The estimated cost of parking lane facilities, as 
requested by the municipality and incorporated into the plans, are shown below.   
 
  Concrete:     (1848 SY) x $37.70/SY = $69,669.60 
       Base Aggregate:  (616 Ton) x $10.45/Ton = $6,437.20 
  Municipality Cost = $76,106.80 

 Blasting for Municipal Utilities 
This project will incorporate blasting in rock areas for the Municipality’s sanitary sewer and watermain 
items not previously completed by the Municipality.  These costs are computed as follows: 

    Municipality Cost = (570 CY) x ($60.00/CY) = $34,200.00 

 Storm Sewer Systems 

o Vortechnic Units – This project will include the installation of two vortechnic units for storm 
water treatment prior to the discharge points, as previously requested by the Municipality.  
The costs will be split by the Municipality and State based on the percentage of the storm 
water responsibility in the system.  These costs are computed as follows: 
 
Unit 1: 
Bid Cost of Vortechnic Unit = $43,750.00 
Percentage of Municipal Storm Water = 35% 
Municipality Cost = $43,750 x 35% = $15,312.50  
 
Unit 2: 
Estimated Cost of Vortechnic Unit = $43,750.00 
Percentage of Municipal Storm Water = 92% 
Municipality Cost = $43,750 x 92% = $40,250.00 

o Mainline Storm Sewer – Due to stormwater entering into the project area from outside the 
roadway improvement, the mainline storm sewer will be upsized to accommodate the flow 
that is the responsibility of the Municipality.  The estimate of cost difference between the 
storm sewer system without and with municipal water combined is shown in “Attachment A – 
Mainline Storm Sewer Cost Estimate”. 
 
Municipality Cost = $55,511.05 

o Storm Sewer on Sunset Drive – As part of the project, storm sewer within the project limits on 
Sunset Drive will be replaced.  This work is considered 100% Municipality cost.  These costs 
are computed as follows: 
 
Municipality Cost = (150 LF of 24” Concrete Pipe) x ($83.88/LF) = $12,582.00 

  

17



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

o Storm Sewer Laterals – As requested by the Municipality, this project will include the 
installation of storm sewer laterals at locations identified by the Municipality.  This work is 
considered 100% Municipality cost.  These costs are computed as follows: 
 
             6-Inch Diameter:    (13 LF) x $34.00/LF = $442.00 
   8-Inch Diameter:    (47 LF) x $36.10/LF = $1696.70 
   10-Inch Diameter:    (17 LF) x $43.20/LF = $734.40 
       12-Inch Diameter:  (11 LF) x $50.00/LF = $550.00 
        Municipality Cost = $3,423.10 

 Casperson Pond Pipe Maintenance 

As part of this project, a pipe liner will be placed from the western roadway right of way on STH 42 to the 
outfall at the marina.  This work is considered 100% Municipality cost.  These costs are computed as 
follows: 

 Liner Cost = (134 LF of Pipe) x ($124/LF) = $16,616.00 
 Cleaning Culvert for Liner = (1 Each) x ($4690.00/Each) = $4690.00 
 Municipality Cost = $21,306.00 

 Lighting 
 
In accordance with WisDOT’s Program Management Manual, Chapter 03-25-05, the cost of a new 
continuous street lighting system is eligible for 50% state/federal funding based on the cost of a WisDOT 
standard lighting system.  WisDOT will participate in the costs of a new system only if it is installed at the 
time of project construction, except as it may qualify under special funding programs specifically for 
lighting.  The Municipality is responsible for the remaining 50% of the lighting system costs. 
 
Lighting system for the project was designed through Donohue & Associates, a consulting firm acting as 
the engineer on behalf of the Municipality.  The total cost for the lighting system, based on quantities from 
Donohue and actual bid unit prices, is $211,628.70.  See “Attachment B – Lighting Costs” for additional 
information.  Costs in excess of the WisDOT standard light system are eligible under CSS funding, as 
specified further below.  Lighting Costs are summarized as follows: 

 WisDOT Standard Light System Cost: 
  15 Poles x $5,000/pole = $75,000.00 
   **Cost/pole includes all incidental items for completion of the system (wire, cabinet, etc.) 
 
  Base on a 50/50 cost share, the cost of a standard system are: 
   50% WisDOT Funding = $37,500.00 
   50% Municipality Funding = $37,500.00 
 
Costs eligible for CSS funding = (Total Cost of Designed System) – (50% State Funding of Standard 
System) – (50% Municipality Funding of Standard System) = $136,628.70 
 
Municipality Cost = $37,500 

 Community Sensitive Solutions (CSS): 
 
This project has a CSS participation up to 3% of roadway construction costs.  This percentage may be 
applied towards colored and/or stamped concrete, decorative lighting features, or other items that meet 
application of these funds via WisDOT policy.   Based on construction cost estimates, the available CSS 
funds for this project is capped at $90,000.00.  Costs in excess of this amount will be 100% responsibility 
of the Municipality.   
 
Current items under the CSS participation include and are estimated as follows: 

18



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

o Colored Concrete: 
 
 Cost estimate = 100 CY x $95/CY = $9,500.00 

o Stamped and Colored Concrete: 

   Stamped Cost = 4215 SF x $9.97/SF = $42,023.55 
   Colored Cost = 52 CY x $95.00/CY = $4,940.00 
   Total cost estimate = $46,963.55 

o Decorative Lighting:  

  Per (e) Lighting above, the total amount eligible for CSS participation is $136,628.70. 

  Total estimated CSS costs = (Colored Concrete Cost) + (Stamped and Colored Concrete Cost) + 

         (Decorative Lighting Cost) = $193,092.25 

 Total Municipality Cost = (CSS Cap) – (Total estimated CSS costs) = $90,000.00 – $193,092.25 

 Municipality Cost = $103,092.25 

 Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Items 

Sanitary sewer and watermain for the project was designed through Donohue & Associates, a consulting 
firm acting as the engineer on behalf of the Municipality.  The total cost for these items, based on actual 
bid prices, is $187,775.90.  See “Attachment C – Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Costs” for additional 
information.   

 Municipality Cost = $187,775.90 
 

 Pavement Marking Items 

The marking of curb and parking stall areas throughout the project are the responsibility of the 
Municipality.  The costs for these items are estimated as follows: 

 Pavement Marking Curb Epoxy:  2,055 LF x $11.00/LF = 22,605.00 
 Pavement Marking Parking Stall Epoxy:  3,810 LF x $4.65/LF = 17,716.50 
 
 Municipality Cost = $40,321.50 

 Mill Road West, 6(f) Property Parking Lot – This project has required the need to purchase new parkland 
areas due to impacts of existing parkland covered under 6(f) restrictions.  As part of the new purchase and 
through coordination with the Municipality, a parking lot will be constructed by the State project on behalf 
of the Municipality.  Any excess credits due to the Municipality from this project will be applied towards 
the construction of that parking lot.  Any additional costs for the parking lot, beyond the credit amounts, 
will be covered by the State as part of the commitment to the 6(f) conversion process.  The estimated cost 
for the parking lot is $70,000. 

 Municipality Storm Sewer Credit: 

The original agreement negotiated a credit with the Municipality for conducting repairs on the existing 
storm sewer system which collapsed in 2005.  This agreement provided for a credit of $275,000 in 2005 
dollars, to be increased at 4% per year through 2012 (anticipated construction year).  This will be extended 
to 2015, the current anticipated construction year.  The credit to the Municipality in 2015 dollars is 
$407,068.00.   
 
  

19



 

Page 8 of 9 
 

The Municipality is also receiving credit for the installation of storm sewer, as installed under a separate 
project by the Municipality but as a benefit to this project.  The credits are computed for the difference in 
cost of the storm sewers, between the size required for State only and the size required for a combined 
system. 

o Scandia Road to Marina Park Outfall – This system was installed with the 2013-2014 public 
utilities project by the Municipality.  The storm sewer was installed to the size required for the 
combined system however needed to be placed to facilitate drainage of new systems on Scandia 
Road being constructed prior to this project.  The credit to the Municipality is $11,360.00.  See 
“Attachment D – Scandia Road to Marina Park Outfall Credit Computation Worksheet” for 
additional information. 

o Beach Park Outfall Storm Sewer – This system will be installed by the Municipality as part of the 
Municipality’s beach project, prior to May 2015.  The storm sewer will be placed by the 
Municipality to minimize additional impacts to the beach after their project is complete.  The 
storm sewer system is to be sized appropriately to handle both Municipality and State stormwater 
in a combined system.  The cost split for this system is 65% State and 35% Municipality, as 
determined based on the percentage of storm water in the system.  The total cost for this work is 
$139,702 (See “Attachment E – Beach Park Outfall Costs”).  The credit to the Municipality for 
this work is $90,806.30.    
 

o Beach Park Outfall Restoration – The State will participate in the cost of the restoration of the 
storm sewer outfall area, being completed as part of the Municipality’s Beach Project.  The total 
credit is computed as $7,494.21.  This is based on the below computations.  The unit prices used 
are the bid unit costs for the State project. 

   Total area disturbed = 150 LF x 50 LF = 833 SY 

    Topsoil:  833 SY x $7.00/SY = $5,831.00 

    Erosion Mat:  833 SY x $1.80/SY = $1,499.40 

    Seed:  833 SY x (2 lbs per 1,000 SF) x $8.65/lb = $129.70 

    Fertilizer: 833 SY x (7 lbs per 1,000 SF) x $65/CWT = $34.11 

    
These credits are for this project specifically and any remaining credits following the completion of this 
project will be terminated.  These funds will be used to fund the items identified above as Municipality 
costs.  These are estimated as follows:     

20



 

Page 9 of 9 
 

Item Category Cost Balance

Initial Credit to the Municipality $407,068.00

Municipality Credit ‐ Scandia Road to Marina Park Outfall ($11,360.00) $418,428.00

Municipality Credit ‐ Beach Park Outfall Storm Sewer ($90,806.30) $509,234.30

Municipality Credit ‐ Beach Park Outfall Restoration ($7,494.21) $516,728.51

Parking Lane Costs 0010 $76,106.80 $433,127.50

Blasting for Municipal Utilities 0020 $34,200.00 $398,927.50

Storm Sewer Systems

Vortechnic Units 0010 $55,562.50 $343,365.00

Mainline Storm Sewer 0010 $55,511.05 $287,853.95

Storm Sewer on Sunset Drive 0010 $12,582.00 $275,271.95

Storm Sewer Laterals 0020 $3,423.10 $271,848.85

Casperson Pond Pipe Maintenance 0020 $21,306.00 $250,542.85

Lighting 0030 $37,500.00 $213,042.85

Community Sensitive Solutions (CSS) 0040 $103,092.25 $109,950.60

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 0020 $187,775.90 ‐$77,825.30

Pavement Marking  0020 $40,321.50 ‐$118,146.80

Mill Road West ‐ 6(f) Conversion Parking Lot (See Page 7) $0.00 ‐$118,146.80  

Based on the above items, the total cost to the village is estimated at $118,146.80. 

 
[END] 

 

21



South System:
Length

location Structure to Structure Station to Station LF without village water with village water without village water with village water Difference
STH 42 SS ML 21.0 ‐ 22.0 622+24 ‐ 622+92 69 42'' 43" x 68" 9,532.35$                       13,281.12$               3,748.77$      

STH 42 SS ML 22.0 23.2 622+92 ‐ 624+25 133 42'' 43" x 68" 18,373.95$                     25,599.84$               7,225.89$      

STH 42 SS ML 23.2 ‐ 24.2 624+25 ‐ 625+72 147 42'' 43" x 68" 20,308.05$                     28,294.56$               7,986.51$      

STH 42 SS ML 24.2 ‐ 32.0 625+72 ‐ 626+23 51 42'' 43" x 68" 7,045.65$                       9,816.48$                 2,770.83$      

STH 42 SS ML 32.0 ‐ 33.0 626+23 ‐ 626+31 35 42'' 43" x 68" 4,835.25$                       6,736.80$                 1,901.55$      

STH 42 SS ML 33.0 ‐ Outfall 626+31 ‐ Outfall 30 42'' 43" x 68" 4,144.50$                       5,774.40$                 1,629.90$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 8' dia 10' dia   6,550.00$                       9,540.00$                 2,990.00$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 6' dia 10' dia 3,425.00$ 9,540.00$ 6,115.00$

Cost

21.0

622+92

622+24

22.0

Size

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 6  dia 10  dia   3,425.00$                       9,540.00$                 6,115.00$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 6' dia 10' dia   3,425.00$                       9,540.00$                 6,115.00$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 6' dia 10' dia   3,425.00$                       9,540.00$                 6,115.00$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 8' dia 10' dia   6,550.00$                       9,540.00$                 2,990.00$      

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 8' dia with weir 10' dia with weir 8,700.40$                       12,180.00$               3,479.60$      

96,315.15$                     149,383.20$             53,068.05$    
North System:

Length
location Structure to Structure Station to Station LF without village water with village water without village water with village water Difference

STH 42 SS ML 43 ‐ 44.2 636+67 ‐ 637+21 54 24'' 24" x 38" 4,529.52$                       6,109.56$                 1,580.04$      

STH 42 SS ML 44.2 ‐ V4 637+21 ‐ 638+94 173 24'' 27" 14,511.24$                     14,082.20$               (429.04)$        

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 4' dia 6' dia 2,391.00$                       3,425.00$                 1,034.00$      

STH 42 SS ML 4' dia 5' dia 2 391 00$ 2 649 00$ 258 00$

Size Cost

622+92

23.2

22.0

624+25

24.2

32.0

33.0

625+72

626+23

626+31

43

44 2 637+21

636+67

STH 42 SS ML ‐ 4' dia 5' dia 2,391.00$                       2,649.00$                 258.00$         

23,822.76$                     26,265.76$               2,443.00$      

Estimated Costs Pipes 83,280.51$                     109,694.96$             26,414.45$    

Structures 36,857.40$                     65,954.00$               29,096.60$    

Total 120,137.91$                   175,648.96$             55,511.05$    

44.2 637+21

Size Estimated Cost/LF
24" 83.88$                        

27" 81.40$                        

36" 130.00$                      

42" 138.15$                      

24" X 38" 113.14$                      

43" X 68" 192.48$                      

$

43" X 68" 192.48$                      

22

dotj3a
Text Box
Attachment A - Mainline Storm Sewer Cost Estimate



BID ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE COST
650.8500 CONSTRUCTION STAKING ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION PROJECT 4610-06-71 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
652.0215 CONDUIT NONMETALLIC SCHEDULE 40 1 1/4-INCH 5632 LF $4.00 $22,528.00
654.0105 CONCRETE BASES TYPE 5 34 EACH $625.00 $21,250.00
654.0200 CONCRETE CONTROL CABINET BASES TYPE 6 1 EACH $1,000.00 $1,000.00
655.0610 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 12 AWG 2754 LF $0.50 $1,377.00
655.0615 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 10 AWG 9808 LF $0.60 $5,884.80
655.0620 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 8 AWG 5740 LF $0.70 $4,018.00
655.0625 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 6 AWG 850 LF $0.85 $722.50
655.0630 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 4 AWG 5549 LF $1.10 $6,103.90
655.0635 ELECTRICAL WIRE LIGHTING 2 AWG 11193 LF $1.50 $16,789.50
656.0200 ELECTRICAL SERVICE METER BREAKER PEDESTAL 1 LS $850.00 $850.00
659.2130 LIGHTING CONTROL CABINET 120/240 30-INCH 1 EACH $5,290.00 $5,290.00

SPV.0060.06 DECORATIVE LIGHT POLES AND ASSEMBLIES 34 EACH $3,610.00 $122,740.00
SPV.0060.07 SALVAGED DECORATIVE LIGHT POLES 9 EACH $175.00 $1,575.00

$211,628.70

LIGHTING ITEMS

23

dotj3a
Text Box
Attachment B - Lighting Estimate



No. Item Qty Unit Price 

Removing Manholes 1 EA 412.00$           $  per EA  $            412.00 

SPV.0090.05 8” Sanitary Sewer 10 LF 94.00$             $  per LF  $            940.00 

SPV.0090.06 10" Sanitary Sewer 586 LF 93.60$             $  per LF  $       54,849.60 

SPV.0090.07 Sanitary Sewer Televising 586 LF 2.50$               $  per LF  $         1,465.00 

SPV.0090.08 Sanitary Lateral 4-inch 42 LF 79.70$             $  per LF  $         3,347.40 

SPV.0060.02 Sanitary Manhole Outside Drop Special 2 EA 5,010.00$        $  per EA  $       10,020.00 

SPV.0060.05 Sanitary Manhole Special 2 EA 3,400.00$        $  per EA  $         6,800.00 

SPV.0060.01 Sanitary Manhole Frame & Lid Special 4 EA 345.00$           $  per EA  $         1,380.00 

SPV.0090.02 Water main 6-inch DIP Special 30 LF 200.00$           $  per LF  $         6,000.00 

SPV.0090.03 Water main 8-inch DIP Special 334 LF 152.60$           $  per LF  $       50,968.40 

SPV.0090.04 Water main 10-inch DIP Special 90 LF 262.00$           $  per LF  $       23,580.00 

SPV.0090.01 Water service 1-inch copper special 39 LF 61.00$             $  per LF  $         2,379.00 

SPV.0060.04 Water Service Connection Set 1 EA 576.00$           $  per EA  $            576.00 

Backfill Granular 350 CY 28.90$             $  per CY  $       10,115.00 

612.0902.S Insulating Water Main (2-Inch) 209 SY 21.50$             $  per SY  $         4,493.50 

612.0902.S Insulating Water Main (4-Inch) 30 SY 55.00$             $  per SY  $         1,650.00 

SPV.0030.03 Exposing Existing Water Main 10 EA 880.00$           $  per EA  $         8,800.00 

187,775.90$     Total =

Attachment C - As-Bid Costs for Sister Bay Utilities (Sanitary & Water)

Village of Sister Bay

WisDOT Project Number: 4610-06-71

Unit Price

N:\pds\projects\Door\4610-06-00\MUNICIPALITIES\SMA\SMA - Revision 2\AttachmentC_REVISED.xlsx
WisDOT Quantities

7/30/2015
Page 1 of 1

24



WisDOT portion of storm sewer from Scandia Road to Marina Park Outfall

Item Quantity Unit Actual Unit Cost Total Cost Quantity Unit Actual Unit Cost Total Cost
Storm Sewer Pipe Reinforced Concrete Class IV 27‐Inch 109 LF $53.00 $5,777.00 353 LF $53.00 $18,709.00

Storm Sewer Pipe Reinforced Concrete Class IV 36‐Inch 244 LF $68.00 $16,592.00 0 LF $68.00 $0.00

Manholes 4‐FT Diameter 0 EACH $1,860.00 $0.00 0 EACH $1,860.00 $0.00

Manholes 5‐FT Diameter 1 EACH $2,300.00 $2,300.00 3 EACH $2,300.00 $6,900.00

Manholes 6‐FT Diameter 3 EACH $3,000.00 $9,000.00 0 EACH $3,000.00 $0.00

Apron Endwall with Grate, 27‐Inch 0 EACH $700.00 $0.00 1 EACH $700.00 $700.00

Apron Endwall with Grate, 36‐Inch 1 EACH $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0 EACH $4,000.00 $0.00

Total $37,669.00 $26,309.00

Difference in Cost Between With WisDOT and Village Only = $11,360.00

With WisDOT Stormwater  Village Only

25

dotj3a
Text Box
Attachment D - Scandia Road to Marina  Park Outfall Credit Computation Worksheet



26

dotj3a
Text Box
Attachment E - Beach Park Outfall Costs

dotj3a
Rectangle



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 08/18/15  
            Item No.: 7 
 
Activities: 
  
Line Burial-Work on the Bay Shore Dr. Line Burial project is substantially completed.  Crews from Vinton 
have surveyed final locations of transformers and telecom equipment and have discovered a few conflicts.  
DOT will coordinate with Vinton and WPS to ensure that conflicts are dealt with appropriately.  We still do 
not have a final project total as of this writing. 
 
Sledding Hill- Work starts and stops on the project, largely around the Beach and excavation of materials 
there.  Roughly 1000 yards of cobble still needs to be removed from the beach to make way for the new 
sidewalk.  Hockers will complete this project after the Beach has been completed. 
 
Beach- the beach is substantially completed, and work will recommence in the fall once planned plantings 
become dormant.  Finishing landscaping will be completed at that time as well.  The encroachment on the 
Stage seating area is being worked on by JJR. 
 
Sunsplash- Sunsplash took place with both Sun and Splash.  Friday was a rain out.  Saturday cleared up, 
and approximately 1350 people attended.  Final financial figures are not in, however, preliminary estimates 
indicate that we not only recovered our initial $15,000 investment, but returned a modest sum on top of 
that.  Numerous complaints were lodged by neighbors (almost all SB Yacht Club) regarding noise intensity, 
duration, and choice of music. We have a representative sample, economic impact survey out to commer-
cial meter customers to assess Sunsplash.  The Village has 60 days to exercise its renewal option.  Staff rec-
ommends if this event is held in the future, that it is changed to a single day event, with a shift to quality of 
artists as opposed to quantity (Ziggy Marley, Shaggy, ect).  We also recommend that the agreement be ad-
justed to reflect the level of involvement that staff expended in making the present event a success.  
 
Niagara Ridge- Construction is underway, and we look forward to 36 new apartments soon. 
 
Harbor View-Preliminary plans have been reviewed by Plan Commission and approved.  The Developer, 
engineers and DOT are working to prepare for the next phase of approval. 
 
Stony Ridge- Mr. Garot has not met deadlines agreed to in the development agreement.  Engineering work 
has been completed.  An email  from 7/14 to him and his expeditor has not been returned.  Mr. Garot con-
tact me on the week of 8/7 to let me know that they were still “good” and would be working on a rebid.  
Stormwater management exceeded budget expectations by $300,000.   
 
Personnel- The search for a new finance director will resume; Janal is working to place advertising as of 
this writing.  Duties of the Finance Director have been split between existing staff. 
 
Marina- The season continues to be on target.  Some accounting still needs to be resolved.  Seasonal slip 
revenues are near all time highs, and transient rentals are in line to be at or near all time highs. 
 
Marketing- Jaws was a hit with audiences, and other movies have been modestly been attended.  The Mar-
keting Staff procured a generator for popcorn, ice cream and movies when the power went out in the Au-
gust Storm.  Sunsplash looks to have recovered the initial $15,000 investment;  
 

42



We should plan for a festival vendor plan for 2016 for Waterfront Park, and need to have dialog about a 
marketing plan for 2016 as well. 
 
Other marketing efforts center around Marinafest, and the Ice Rink.  
 
We have rebuilt the Village’s website, www.sisterbaywi.gov  some kinks still need to be worked out tech-
nically, and we await the County IT department to be able to complete those (issues with our internal serv-
er).   
 
Staff has sent out the Summer newsletter as well as the first citizen survey.  We anticipate having results for 
the September Board Meeting. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


Door County Coastal Byway Council
Meeting Agenda – Thursday, July 16th 2015

Time: 8:30 a.m.
Place: Village of Egg Harbor, 7860 State Highway 42, Egg Harbor WI 54209

Call to Order. Chair Ann Miller called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m.

Declaration of a Quorum - Adopt agenda. The following Council members were present and
constitute a quorum: Michelle Anderson-Village of Egg Harbor, Chuck Tice-Town of Sevastopol,
Ann Miller-Town of Liberty Grove, Scott Baker-Village of Sister Bay and Kriss Schorer-Town of
Baileys Harbor. Also present: Sam Perlman-DCEDC, Christine Salmon-DCVB and Linda Wait-
recording secretary.

Motion by Kriss and second by Michelle to adopt the agenda; motion carried.

Approval of Previous Minutes. Motion by Scott and second by Kriss to approve the minutes of May
7, 2015, with correction to the checking account balance reported - $17,780.22. Motion carried.

Treasurer’s Report. Sam reported a balance of $22,329.17 as of July 6, 2015. There was an
expenditure of $31.05 to USPS for mailing brochures to welcome centers and receipts of $2,500 from
the WPS grant. Motion by Kriss and second by Ann to approve the treasurer’s report; motion carried.

Sam said there is a pending bill of $730 due TownWeb Design representing the second half,
already approved for payment. He is getting some final training on the administrative side of the
website.

Since 2016 budget planning is already in the works, Beth could probably send out the $300
annual contribution reminder to the municipalities.

Pending Business:

A. Election of Officers. Motion by Michelle and second by Scott to nominate Ann Miller at Chair,
Kriss Schorer as Vice Chair, Chuck Tice at Secretary and Beth Hagen as Treasuruer, and to cast a
unanimous ballot for those individuals. Motion carried, unanimously.

Chair: Ann Miller
Vice Chair: Kriss Schorer
Secretary: Chuck Tice
Treasurer: Beth Hagen
Terms expire: July 2017

B. Final letter on joint effort by all WI Scenic Byway groups to State and US legislative
representatives on consideration of reinstatement of National Scenic Byway Program funding and
opening National Scenic Byway application process regardless of funding outcome in the US budget
process. Sam did not receive responses from the Lower Wisconsin or the Great River Road. The letter
will be modified to include just the Lake Superior and the Door County Coastal Byways and sent out.

C. Update on Coloring Book Kit. Sam and Kriss are working on the project and provided some notes
and rough sketches. The 24-page book with color cover would have the DCCB story, three pages for
each community plus space for business cards ($50-$75), inside back cover scavenger hunt and back
cover perhaps sponsored by the DCVB. Sam and Kriss will talk to Peninsula School of Art, Artist

44



Door County Coastal Byway Council – Minutes of July 16, 2015

2

League and art teachers at Gibraltar and Sevastopol in hopes of getting some simplified line drawings
for each of the eight communities. Pricing seems to be about $2,500 for 2,500 books or order more
and get a better price. Perhaps an annual drawing could give away a complimentary stay or gift
certificate.

D. Illegal or discontinued business or applicable signage – working with Door County
Planning/Zoning and DOT. An email from Mariah Goode at Door County Planning Department
indicates that an inordinate number of advertising signs are going up without zoning permits or signage
which is not allowed at all by zoning regulations. Ann also reported that they do not fit with Trans 202
(Wisconsin Scenic Byways Program). Michelle indicated that the Village of Egg Harbor has its own
sign code and Scott said Sister Bay’s is a little relaxed right now due to construction.

If you see questionable signage, send the address (and photos if available) to Mariah and they
will look into the issue.

New Business:

Correspondence. Sam reported that the brochures were sent out to various state and county regional
visitor centers.

Agenda items for next meeting / suggestions:
• coloring book, artwork, business card size and price
• update on advertising signage

Future Meeting Dates. Next meeting date will be Wednesday, September 9th 2015 at 8:30 a.m. at
Baileys Harbor (Ephraim unable to accommodate that date).

Payment of Bills (balance of Town Web Design) - pending.

Adjourn. Motion by Kriss and second by Scott to adjourn. Motion carried and meeting adjourned at
9:12 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Wait, recording secretary

185 East Walnut Street, Sturgeon Bay WI 54235
Telephone: (920) 743-3113

www.doorcountycoastalbyway.org

45



 
 

Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
July 27, 2015 

 
The meeting was called to order July 27, 2015 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss, Hugh Mulliken  
 
In attendance Chris Hecht & Willard Randall 
 
The agenda was changed to approve minutes of the March 23 meeting 
 
A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, seconded by 
Scott Backer. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
Public input. None 
 
Discussion Items: 

 Chiefs Report 
o The Chief passed out a count of calls. There was a large number of first responder calls 

this month. 
o There have been inquires about the brush fire in Sept of 2011 from the property owners 

insurance companies. The inquiries are to settle litigations between property owners. 
o The new tanker is here and in service. There is one change required to improve drive 

abilities. 
o We have heard nothing about our 2015 grants. The 2014 grants have closed out and we 

are expecting an onsite audit. 
o DNR grants are done and were handled by SBLGFFA. 
o We have, through the Door County Fire Chiefs, applied for a Raibrook grant for fire 

accountability tags mandated by MABAS. 
o CPR classes are ongoing. We have trained over 200 people in CPR and AED usage. The 

class was to cover the lack of education provided by the technical college.  
o There was a rope rescue class held this spring. 
o We are looking in to chain saw classes in the fall. 
o We hoped to offer a first responder class this spring. One of the reasons the classes 

were not held is the county would not pay for the class.  
o Mike Goldstone and Chris Hecht both completed and passed Fire Officer Two. 
o The SBLGFFA cut a purchase order for $60,000.00 worth of extrication equipment. 

When the equipment arrives it will be turned over to the Fire Department. 

 Clerk/Treasurer Report 
o A list of calls since the last meeting was passed out and discussed. 
o A list of checks was passed out. 
o The 2015 budget to date report was passed out.   
o A motion was made by Nancy Gross to approve the treasurers’ report, seconded by 

Scott Backer. Motion passed with no discussion 

46



 
 
 

 First responder agreement  
o The Norther Door First Responders was formed by citizens of Liberty Grove, Sister Bay, 

and Ephraim. When the Ephraim Fire Department joined with the Gibraltar and Baileys 
Harbor Fire Department they put the first responders under the Mid-door Group. 

o About 10 years ago the Norther Door First responders were made part of SBLGFD. 
o The Ephraim board is inquiring about having their First Responders being part of the 

Norther Door First responders. 

 Budget 
o The chief presented a preliminary budget to the fire board.  

 Raibrook Grant 
o  Covered in chief report. 

 Election  
o There will be an election for SBLGFFA secretary and president and department Chief 

later this year. The board will have to approve the chief.  

 Fire District  
o No discussion 

 Set date for Next Meeting 
o August 18, 2015 4:30 pm 

  
 A motion was made by Scott Backer to Adjourn, seconded by Louis Covotsos. Motion passed with no 
discussion 
 
Submitted By  
Bill Randall 
Fire Department Clerk 
 

47



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting July 21, 2015 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by Virginia Phelan 
at 8:00 A.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Lou Covotsos, Henry Timm, Kathy Enquist, Margot Warch,  
Betty Curzon and Ralph Blankenburg.  
 
Absent:  Allen Strack 
 
Public Input:  None. 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the June 9, 2015 Meeting: 
Kathy Enquist moved and Margot Warch seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the June 9, 2015 
meeting. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Review and Payment of Bills: 

Deluxe checking Reorder Checks $94.00 
Ralph Blankenburg Checkers Set for Library Garden $162.59 
Webb Supply Water Softener Cartridge $199.00 
Sparkle Cleaning Service Window Washing $280.00 
Wulf Brothers Repair AC Unit $543.37 
United States Treasury Workers Comp. / Medicare $306.80 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $1,560.00 
Lundqist Plumbing Repairing Second Urinal $173.45 
Acton Electric Replace Light bulbs in Hanging Fix. $87.50 
Jungwirth Ace Hardware Cart for Checkers $22.99 
Frontier Communications Telephone $131.43 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $196.41 
Village of Sister Bay Water & 
Sewer Fire Sprinkler Water $110.25 
Village of Sister Bay Water & 
Sewer Domestic Water $316.93 
Wisconsin Public Service Electric $814.89 
Warner-Wexel, LLC TP/Kitchen Towels / Hand Towels $218.47 
Warner-Wexel, LLC Trash Liners $19.29 
Total 

 
$5,237.37 

 
Margot Warch moved and Virginia Phelan seconded the motion to approve the payment of the bills.  The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



Librarians Report: 
Betty Curzon reported: 
 
Circulation: 
2015    6,779  YTD  26,701 
2014    7,008  YTD  28,238 
 
Library Visits: 
May 2015 5,342 
May 2014 5,319 
   
People/Programs: 
2015 8 Programs  Total attendance: 61 Adults;119 Juveniles 
2014 7 Programs Total attendance: 80 Adults;  53 Juveniles  
 
Wireless: 
2015 886  Devices 
2014 969  Devices 
 
Computers: 
SAM(Public)  
2015:  627 sessions for a total of 19,657 minutes  
2014:  760 sessions for a total of 20,876  minutes     
 
 Overdrive: 
 2015: 249 e-book uses  79  Audio book uses  Video Uses 1 
 2014: 183 e-book uses  58  Audio book uses 
 
As of July 8th, we have 91 Children signed up for the Summer Reading Program.  This is the are group 
from birth up to thirteen years.  They are keeping track of the hours they've read and can earn books and 
prizes for those hours.  So far we have 58 adults and eight teenagers who have signed up for their 
division of the SRP.  These readers turn in a slip for every three books they have read or listened to.  
These slips are put into a weekly drawing for a prize basket.  In addition to the weekly drawings for adult 
interest baskets, we have had enough donations from local business to be able to offer two prize baskets 
geared toward the teen readers.  The drawings for those baskets will be held on July 20th and August 
17th.  We should make a point of supporting the businesses who donated the prizes for the teen baskets 
and thank them for doing so.  The businesses are Ecology Sports, Red Putter Mini Golf, Wilson's Ice 
Cream Parlor and Pizza Hut.  It would not surprise me if we have many more teens sighing up next 
summer because the prize baskets are getting a lot of interest from this year's twelve year olds! 
I'm working with the technical processing person at Door County Library headquarters to get the outdoor 
checkers cataloged so we can begin checking them out for use.  Jeff has constructed a neat little wheeled 
cart for them. 
Garden:  
Checkers: 
The cart and checkers were shown to the commission. 
 
Nameplate location. 
It was decided to put the plate on the center of the table. 
 
Landscape Contract: 
The Lakeshore Landscape bid was reviewed by the Commission and it was decided that the bid for the 
first year was acceptable but would he be willing to hold the next two years at the same rate.  Ralph 
Blankenburg will discuss it with John Meredth and have him come to our next meeting. 
 
 
 

49



Village Property: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that Zeke Jackson had requested that I to bring the subject of linking the 
Library garden to a new parking lot to the west of the library.  No objection was raised except for who 
would be absorbing the cost of the installation of the connecting walk. 
 
Committee Reports: 
None 
 
Marina Fest: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that Margot Warch, Betty Curzon, Mike Scovlle and Ralph Blankenburg. 
Mike, Margot and Ralph were getting together at the shed today at 1:00 p.m.  Our hours will be for one 
day on Saturday from 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.  Margot and Mike will take charge of sorting the books.   
Lou Covotsos said that he would look into a possible other location to sort the books.  
 
Next Meeting: 
August 18, 2015 @ 1:00 p.m. 
 
Adjourn: 
It was moved by Kathy Enquist and seconded by Margot Warch to adjourn at 9:15 a. m.  The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 

50



 1 

 2 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 3 

TUESDAY, JULY 28, 2015 4 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 5 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 6 
 7 
The July 28, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 8 
Lienau at 5:36 P.M. 9 
 10 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Shane Solomon, Scott Baker, Don Howard, Marge 11 
Grutzmacher, Eric Lundquist and Nate Bell.  12 
 13 
Others:  Brandon Small, Al Gokey, John Maas, Denise Bhirdo, Ron Kane, Bill Wegehaupt, 14 
Steve and Marge Musinsky, John Maas, Connie Carlson, Norbert and Ellen Ritt, Alison Beadell, 15 
Simon Werner, Jill Hanley and three other individuals. 16 
 17 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 18 
 19 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 20 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received. He then asked if anyone wished 21 
to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  22 
 23 
Connie Carlson of Beacon Marine requested that Beacon Marine be allowed to display a 24 
couple of boats on their grassy lot. Jackson noted that in order to do that a Zoning Code text 25 
amendment would be required.  26 
 27 
Denise Bhirdo indicated that it is her understanding that the Village Administrator has 28 
determined that the propane tank for a home on Maple Drive is not in the front yard, but she 29 
disagrees. Therefore, she took a photo of that home and e-mailed it to the Village President 30 
with a request that the matter be referred to the Plan Commission. 31 
 32 
Bhirdo also indicated that she does not believe the designated parking areas on Bay Shore 33 
Drive are set back far enough from the intersections, and, therefore, safety issues could arise. It 34 
was the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Parks, Properties & Streets Committee 35 
as well as the Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee. 36 
 37 
Approval of the agenda: 38 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Agenda for the July 28, 39 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 40 
 41 
Approval of minutes as published: 42 
As to the minutes for the June 24, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission: 43 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the June 24, 44 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
  46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

51



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

Business Items: 1 
Item No. 1. Public Hearing on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such 2 
fashion that quarries are allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District; 3 
Discussion on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that 4 
quarries are allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District; and consider a 5 
motion for action to recommend approval of Ordinance 235, which amends §66.0320(c) of 6 
the Zoning Code: 7 
Lienau explained that a public hearing would be conducted this evening regarding Brandon 8 
Small’s request to amend the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are allowed as a 9 
conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. If the Commission determines that the 10 
amendment should be made, a referral will be made to the Village Board. Further, if an 11 
application for a Conditional Use Permit is actually filed, another public hearing will be 12 
required. If the Commission denies Small’s request there is no guarantee that “this will be the 13 
end of it” as the matter is in mediation. 14 
 15 
At 5:40 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing on a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning 16 
Code for the Village of Sister Bay in such fashion that quarries are allowed as a conditional use 17 
in the B-1 General Business District to order. 18 
 19 
Bill Wegehaupt of 10579 Fieldcrest Road indicated that he is against allowing quarries as a 20 
conditional use in the B-1 General Business District as it will have negative impacts on the 21 
people who live in the surrounding residential neighborhood. The dust from the current quarry 22 
operation goes everywhere and the noise is very distracting. 23 
 24 
Steve Musinsky of 10519 Fieldcrest Road indicated that he also is opposed to allowing quarries 25 
as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. He then read a prepared statement 26 
aloud, and also indicated that if a home is in close proximity to a quarry the ability of a 27 
homeowner to actually obtain a mortgage could be affected.    28 
 29 
Brandon Small indicated that he understands the neighbors’ concerns about the quarry, but 30 
pointed out that the current quarry could be operated for an indefinite period of time. If the 31 
new proposal is accepted the quarry would be shut down in ten years and a reclamation plan 32 
would have to be adhered to. 33 
 34 
At 6:01 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 35 
declared that the public hearing was closed. 36 
 37 
Howard indicated that he hasn’t heard anything this evening which convinces him that quarries 38 
should be allowed as a conditional use. 39 
 40 
Solomon noted that he realizes there are “two sides to the story”, but based upon what he 41 
heard this evening he believes the quarry operations should remain as they are right now as 42 
eventually the useful life of the quarry will expire. 43 
 44 
Lundquist pointed out that whatever action the Commission takes “it’s a gamble”. He also 45 
stated that he believes the adjoining property owners should be fully advised of what is being 46 
proposed and what the consequences of that proposal could be. Several of the Commission 47 
members concurred.   48 
 49 

52



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

Denise Bhirdo noted that if a text amendment is made it would be possible to impose a “sunset 1 
clause”. 2 
 3 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Grutzmacher that Agenda Item No. 1 - Discussion on 4 
a request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are allowed 5 
as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District, shall be tabled until the next meeting 6 
of the Plan Commission so that the Commission members will have an opportunity to obtain 7 
public input on this issue. To that end, prior to that meeting a fact sheet/notice shall be sent to 8 
all the individuals who own property within 1,000 feet of the existing and proposed quarry 9 
operations. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 
 11 
Item No. 2. Discussion on a request to amend a Conditional Use Permit for Alison Beadell of 12 
2259 Scandia Rd; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 13 
On October 8, 2013 the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 219, which granted a 14 
Conditional Use Permit for a second dwelling unit at 2259 Scandia Road to Alison Beadell, but 15 
to date she has not made any of the building modifications mentioned in that permit. Beadell 16 
has now requested that her Conditional Use Permit be amended as she would like to change 17 
her building plans. A copy of the revised plans was included in the meeting packets. 18 
 19 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that Alison Beadell’s request to amend 20 
her Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 2259 Scandia Road is approved as 21 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 22 
 23 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding Paul Vandermaazen’s request for a permit to erect a 6’, salt-24 
treated wooden privacy fence in the front yard at 10397 STH 57; Consider a motion for 25 
action if necessary: 26 
Paul VanderMazzen has requested that he be allowed to erect a 6’, salt-treated wooden privacy 27 
fence in the front yard of his residence located at 10397 STH 57. The Zoning Code does not 28 
allow fencing in the front yard unless the Plan Commission grants approval. VanderMazzen 29 
would like to install the fence on top of already existing berms which surround his garage as he 30 
believes the fencing would help eliminate highway noise and allow for more privacy. 31 
 32 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Howard that a permit shall be issued to Paul 33 
Vandmaazen to erect a 6’ salt-treated wooden privacy fence in the front yard at 10397 STH 57. 34 
Motion failed with Lienau, Bell, Grutzmacher, Baker and Lienau opposed. 35 
 36 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that a permit shall be issued to Paul 37 
Vandmaazen to erect the 6’ salt-treated wooden privacy fence which is described in the 38 
document which was included in the meeting packets at 10397 STH 57, but that fence may not 39 
be erected on top of the existing berm. Motion failed with Lienau, Bell, Lundquist and 40 
Grutzmacher opposed. 41 
 42 
Item No. 4. Discussion on a request for approval of fence materials by Norbert and Ellen Ritt 43 
of 10786 N. Spring Road; Consider a motion for action if appropriate: 44 
Norbert and Ellen Ritt have requested that they be allowed to erect a 48” cedar split rail fence 45 
with a mesh wire backing in the side and back yards at 10786 N. Spring Road to prevent their 46 
dog from running away. 47 
 48 

53



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -4-  

 

A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard that Norbert and Ellen Ritt shall be 1 
allowed to erect the fence which is described on the documentation which was included in the 2 
meeting packets at 10786 N. Spring Road as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Item No. 5. Review and discussion on Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for two 5 
adjoining CSM requests and a PUD request for the property known as the “Old School 6 
Property” at 10604 STH 57; Consider a motion to proceed to public hearing: 7 
Preliminary Site Plans, Utility Plans, Grading and Drainage Plans, and drafts of two CSM’s 8 
which were submitted by Al Gokey on behalf of Harbor View, LLC for the Old School Property 9 
at the intersection of STH 57 and STH 42 were included in the meeting packets, and the 10 
Commission members jointly reviewed all of that documentation. There are now six lots within 11 
the development rather than seven. The question arose as to whether or not there should be a 12 
public or private road within the development, and Gokey indicated that the costs would be 13 
astronomical if he were required to install a public road on his property. He also noted that 14 
whatever type of road is constructed it will not be a “through street”.    15 
 16 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that a public hearing shall be conducted 17 
on Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for the two adjoining CSM’s and a PUD which were 18 
reviewed at this meeting for the property which is commonly referred to as the “Old School 19 
Property” at 10604 STH 57. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Item No. 6. Discussion on the U.S. Supreme Court case which is entitled Reed v. Town of 22 
Gilbert, AZ; Review of relevant sections of the Sister Bay Zoning Code, (§66.0720, §66.0721, 23 
and §66.0722), and discussion on the implications of that case: 24 
Jackson introduced Cody Garris, who is serving an internship with the Village, and asked that 25 
Garris explain the implications of the Supreme Court case which is entitled “Reed v. Town of 26 
Gilbert, AZ”. Based upon that case the Village’s Sign Code could be challenged in Court. In a 27 
rare unanimous decision the Court struck down a local government’s Sign Code as a violation 28 
of the freedom of speech guaranteed by the First Amendment. Discussion took place regarding 29 
this issue, and it was eventually the consensus that the Village’s current sign regulations shall 30 
stand.       31 
 32 
Item No. 7. Discussion on the Village of Sister Bay Sign Code: 33 
Grutzmacher noted that a number of banners have been erected at the corner of Mill Road and 34 
N. Bay Shore Drive, and believes that display is quite unsightly and could be considered 35 
“overkill”.  36 
 37 

It was the consensus that the Village’s Maintenance Department employees shall be 38 

asked to make a concerted effort to see that any banners which are erected on the 39 

Village’s banner posts are displayed in a tasteful fashion.     40 
 41 
Grutzmacher also noted that she has heard comments that the Parks Committee and the Marina 42 
Committee have granted permission for a mural to be painted on the Boathouse, and asked if 43 
this is a permitted activity. It is her contention that before any final decisions are made 44 
regarding the mural content a referral should be made to the Plan Commission.   45 
 46 
The Commission members requested that a draft of a Mural Code be prepared and presented to 47 
them at a future meeting.   48 
  49 

54



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -5-  

 

Item No. 8. Discussion regarding §66.0501(b)(3)(e) - Accessory buildings in the Front Yard 1 
Setback Area; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 2 
Lee Callum indicated that he would like to construct a two car garage on his property, but the 3 
preferred location is technically considered to be the “front yard”. It is his understanding that 4 
§66.0501 of the Zoning Code states that accessory buildings are not permitted in front yards. In 5 
the past requests such as this were referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals, but Jackson is 6 
unsure that Callum would be able to prevail as he would have to prove that there is a 7 
“hardship”. 8 
 9 
Jackson believes it would be best for requests such as this to be considered on a case-by-case 10 
basis. If this were to occur the requests would have to be treated as a conditional use. 11 
 12 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Bell that a Zoning Code text amendment which 13 
states that accessory buildings shall be allowed in the front yard setback area of the R-1 District 14 
as a conditional use shall be drafted and presented to the Plan Commission members at their 15 
next meeting. Motion carried – All ayes.     16 
 17 
Item No. 9. Discussion on conversion of Mariners Pointe Dr. from a public road to a private 18 
road; Consider a motion to refer for further action: 19 
Representatives of the Mariners Pointe Homeowner’s Association have expressed concerns that 20 
since construction has started on the Old Ballfield Property traffic within their development has 21 
increased dramatically. They are wondering if Village officials would consider converting 22 
Mariners Point Drive from a public road to a private road. 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Village is not interested in 25 
converting Mariners Point Drive to a private road. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Item No. 10. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 28 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 29 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 30 
 31 

  Work on the Bay Shore Drive Line Burial Project is substantially completed. 32 

  Work is progressing on the Sledding Hill. Hockers Excavating will complete this project 33 
once all the work on the beach has been completed. 34 

  The anticipated substantial completion date for the Beach Reconstruction Project is 35 
August 6th. There were cost under-runs, and the Parks Committee decided to use those 36 
funds to construct a reclaimed paver sidewalk around the entire beach. The pavers were 37 
taken out of the brick parking lot on the former Helm’s property. The swim buoy permit 38 
was just received last week. 39 

  Midwest Sunsplash is scheduled for August 7th and 8th.  40 

  The search for a new Finance Director will resume at the end of July. One of the Parks 41 
employees will be on medical leave for three to four months, and Joe Baldarotta will be 42 
returning as the Ice Rink Manager. 43 

  Sales are up considerably at the Marina. The Marina Guest Events have also been a huge 44 
success. 45 

  Movies in the Park are being conducted on a regular basis and data is being compiled 46 
regarding attendance rates. 47 

  The Village’s website has been entirely refurbished but there still are a few “kinks” which 48 
have to be worked out. 49 

55



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -6-  

 

  Construction has started on the Niagara Ridge Development. 1 

  Keith Garot has not met the deadline agreed to in his Development Agreement, but 2 
Jackson just learned that revisions were made to the engineering plans for that 3 
development. 4 

  Enforcement letters were sent to four individuals regarding an unscreened propane tank, 5 
unkempt vegetation and illegal parking of a boat(s). 6 

  He made four site visits and spoke with the owners/occupants of those properties 7 
regarding placement of a machine in the right-of-way, an unpermitted sandwich board 8 
sign, an unpermitted real estate sign, and display of unpermitted fireworks. 9 

 10 
Jesse Johnson has placed a temporary goat pen in front of The Creamery. Such an appurtenance 11 
is technically not permitted.  12 
 13 
Discussion took place regarding the goat pen issue, and it was eventually the consensus that 14 
Jackson shall contact Jesse Johnson and inform him that if he wants to continue to display goats 15 
in the pen after the work is completed on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project, he must 16 
submit a Zoning Permit Application and appear before the Plan Commission.    17 
  18 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 19 
Committee, Official or Employee: 20 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 21 
committee, official or employee: 22 
 23 

 The Plan Commission will be asked to determine whether or not the propane tank 24 
Denise Bhirdo referred to at the beginning of this meeting is in the front yard of a 25 
residence on Maple Drive. 26 

 At the August Plan Commission Meeting a public input session shall be conducted on a 27 
request to amend §66.0320(c) of the Zoning Code in such fashion that quarries are 28 
allowed as a conditional use in the B-1 General Business District. Prior to that meeting a 29 
fact sheet/notice shall be sent to all the individuals who own property within 1,000 feet 30 
of the existing and proposed quarry operations.  31 

  At the August Plan Commission Meeting a public hearing shall be conducted regarding 32 
Al Gokey’s preliminary plan submission for two adjoining CSM’s and a PUD for the 33 
property which is commonly referred to as the “Old School Property” at 10604 STH 57. 34 

  At the August meeting of the Plan Commission a draft of a Zoning Code text amendment 35 
which states that accessory buildings shall be allowed in the front yard setback area of 36 
the R-1 District as a conditional use will be considered. 37 

  The downtown parking space safety issues which Denise Bhirdo referred to at the 38 
beginning of this meeting shall be referred to the Parks, Properties & Streets Committee 39 
and the Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee. 40 

   A draft of a Mural Code shall be prepared and presented to the Plan Commission for 41 
consideration at a future meeting. 42 

  The Village’s Maintenance Department employees shall be asked to make a concerted 43 
effort to see that any banners which are erected on the Village’s banner posts are 44 
displayed in a tasteful fashion. 45 

  The Plan Commission will consider Beacon Marine’s request to allow parking of boats in 46 
the R-1 District at a future meeting, and, if that request is deemed to be appropriate, 47 
recommend a proper course of action. 48 
 49 

56



Minutes for the July 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Plan Com\2015\2015_07\word files\072815 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on July 28, 2015; Last Printed: 8/12/2015 2:18 PM 

 -7-  

 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 2 
Commission at 9:17 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Assistant Administrator 8 

57



58



59



60


	SB - LBG LibraryMinutes of July 21  2015.pdf
	Meeting July 21, 2015




